

CHAPTER ~~30-05-02~~
~~WATERCRAFT FOR HIRE~~
[REPEALED]

Section

~~30-05-02-01 Safety Equipment~~

~~30-05-02-02 Construction~~

~~30-05-02-03 Operation~~

~~30-05-02-04 Violations are Noncriminal~~

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-13-04 [Repealed] Sixty-fifth Legis. Assembly SB2239

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-13-04 [Repealed] Sixty-fifth Legis. Assembly SB2239

**CHAPTER 30-03-03
CONSTRUCTION AND USE OF FISHHOUSES FOR WINTER FISHING**

Section

30-03-03-01 License Procurement [Repealed]

30-03-03-02 Use [Repealed]

30-03-03-03 Construction

30-03-03-04 Location

30-03-03-05 Open When in Use

30-03-03-06 Violations Are Noncriminal

30-03-03-03. Construction. Any structure used as a fish house or dark house, to include campers, that is required to have the owner's name and address or telephone number or a registration number issued by the department for the fishhouse inscribed on it, shall be constructed of material that will allow it to float and be readily removable from the ice at any time.

History: Amended effective September 1, 1993; April 1, 2006; April 1, 2009; January 1, 2014.

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-06-07

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-06-07

**CHAPTER 30-04-02
PUBLIC USE OF GAME OR FISH MANAGEMENT AREAS**

Section

- 30-04-02-01 Public Access and Use
- 30-04-02-02 Public Hunting, Fishing, and Trapping [Repealed]
- 30-04-02-03 Motor Vehicles
- 30-04-02-04 Watercraft
- 30-04-02-05 Firearms
- 30-04-02-06 Littering and Abandonment of Property
- 30-04-02-07 Removal and Destruction of Property
- 30-04-02-08 Private Property and Structures
- 30-04-02-09 Cropping, Haying, and Commercial Enterprises
- 30-04-02-10 Animals Prohibited - Exceptions
- 30-04-02-11 Camping
- 30-04-02-12 Group Activities
- 30-04-02-13 Other Uses [Repealed]
- 30-04-02-14 Noise
- 30-04-02-14.1 Tree Stands, and Ground Blinds, Game Cameras, and Traps
- 30-04-02-14.2 Dogs
- 30-04-02-15 Department Work
- 30-04-02-16 Glass Beverage Containers or Kegs Prohibited
- 30-04-02-17 Baiting
- 30-04-02-18 Fireworks, Model Rocket Engines, or Combustible or Explosive Materials
- Prohibited
- 30-04-02-19 Penalty
- 30-04-02-20 Paintballing Prohibited
- 30-04-02-21 Geocaching Prohibited
- 30-04-02-22 Drones Prohibited

30-04-02-05. Firearms.

Use of firearms on wildlife management areas is allowed, except in a reckless and indiscriminate manner, and as otherwise posted at public road entry points. A person discharging a firearm on a department-designated target shooting range shall not be considered to be engaging in indiscriminate shooting if conducted in accordance to the below rules specified for WMA Rifle/Handgun shooting ranges and WMA Shotgun shooting ranges. The use of tracer rounds and/or exploding targets is prohibited on all WMAs. ~~Any person who violates this section is guilty of a noncriminal offense and shall pay a one hundred dollar fee.~~

WMA Rifle/Handgun Range Rules:

1. Range hours are from sunrise to sunset
2. Shooting permitted only from established benches to designated target stands
3. No firearms may be handled when the range has been declared "clear" and people are down range. When any person is downrange, all firearms must have the muzzle pointed down range, action open, ejection port or cylinder up, and magazine removed
4. Exploding targets are prohibited - Only paper or cardboard targets are permitted
5. Tracer, armor piercing and steel core ammunition is prohibited
6. Persons destroying target posts or other property are liable for replacement or costs associated with replacement
7. Only handheld or shoulder-fired firearms are permitted
8. Fully automatic firearms are prohibited

9. Centerfire rifles .50 caliber or larger are prohibited

WMA Shotgun Range Rules:

1. Range hours are from sunrise to sunset
2. Only use of shotguns is permitted on a shotgun range. Handgun and rifle use is prohibited on a shotgun range
3. Use of buckshot or slugs is prohibited
4. Only commercially manufactured clay targets may be used
5. All spent shells and other materials shall be placed in the trash receptacles or taken away from the range by the range user

History: Amended effective April 1, 1986; April 1, 2006; January 1, 2014.

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-11-05

30-04-02-14.1. Tree stands, ground blinds, game cameras, and traps.

No person may construct or use a permanent tree stand or permanent steps to a tree stand or permanent ground blind on any wildlife management area. Portable tree stands and portable steps, screw-in steps, natural tree stands, ~~and~~ portable ground blinds, and game cameras may be used. Portable tree stands and portable steps are defined as those that are held to the tree with ropes, straps, cables, chains, or bars. Screw-in steps are those that are screwed into the tree by hand without the aid of any tools. Ladder-type stands that lean against the tree are portable stands. A notched board placed in a tree crotch is a portable stand. Natural stands are those crotches, trunks, down trees, etc., where no platform is used. The owner's name, city, and telephone number, the owner's North Dakota hunter education number, or a unique identification number issued by the department must be on the tree stand, ~~or~~ portable ground blind, ~~or both~~ game cameras, and traps, and be readable from the ground. Tree stands and ground blinds do not preempt hunting rights of others in the vicinity of the tree stand, ~~or~~ ground blind, ~~or game camera~~. Tree stands, steps, ~~and~~ ground blinds, and game cameras may not be placed or put up before August twentieth of the year, and they shall be removed and taken down by January thirty-first of the following year. Stands, steps, ~~and~~ ground blinds, and game cameras not removed by the thirty-first of January are considered abandoned property and are subject to removal and confiscation by the director or the director's designee. Any person who violates this section is guilty of a noncriminal offense and shall pay a one hundred dollar fee.

History: Effective April 1, 1986; amended effective April 1, 2006; April 1, 2009; January 1, 2014.

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-11-05

30-04-02-22. Drones Prohibited.

1. No person shall operate a drone or any radio-controlled aircraft while on any state wildlife management area unless authorized by the director or the director's designee.
2. The term drone refers to an unmanned aerial vehicle that can fly autonomously or by remote control.

History:

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-11-05

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-11-05

CHAPTER 30-02-05 ELK LICENSE RAFFLE

Section

~~30-02-05-01 — Procedures and
Conditions 30-02-05-02~~

~~Accounting~~

Statement

~~30-02-05-03 — Financial Report~~

~~30-02-05-01. Procedures and conditions.~~

~~Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, the rocky mountain elk foundation and the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center shall submit to the director an overall plan of raffle procedures and program conditions for the director's approval. A detailed copy of guidelines for volunteers who are assisting in the sales of raffle tickets must also be submitted. Upon the director's approval, the rocky mountain elk foundation and the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center must provide a copy of these guidelines to all volunteers before the volunteers are issued tickets for sale to the public. The raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.~~

~~History: Effective June 1, 1992; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

~~30-02-05-02. Accounting statement.~~

~~The rocky mountain elk foundation and the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center will provide the director with a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing. This statement will include information regarding raffle expenses, gross and net raffle income, number of tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle proceeds were used to promote the raffle.~~

~~History: Effective June 1, 1992; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

~~30-02-05-03. Financial report.~~

~~The rocky mountain elk foundation and the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center will provide the director with an annual financial report for all projects funded with raffle proceeds and the balance of unspent funds.~~

~~History: Effective June 1, 1992; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.6~~

CHAPTER 30-02-05
LICENSE RAFFLES & AUCTIONS

Section

30-02-05-01 Procedures and Conditions.

30-02-05-02 Procedures and conditions, spring wild turkey licenses – non-profit organizations; special allocation hunting license authorization.

30-02-05-03 Accounting statement.

30-02-05-04 Performance report.

30-02-05-01. Procedures and conditions.

Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, any organization which receives any license in accordance with North Dakota Century Code Chapter 20.1-05.1-02, shall submit to the director an application on forms provided by the Department. This application form must be received by the Department by January 1 of the year which the license is intended to be used. Any raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.

History: Effective _____

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-05.1-02

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-05.1-02

30-02-05-02. Procedures and conditions, spring wild turkey licenses – non-profit organizations; special allocation hunting license authorization.

1) _____ In addition to the allocation provided by North Dakota Century Code section 20.1-05.1-01.2, the director shall issue two additional spring wild turkey licenses and permits to hunt wild turkeys to individuals residing in North Dakota who are selected by the national wild turkey federation. All requirements contained within North Dakota Century Code 20.1-05.1-01.2 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 30-02-05-01 apply to this additional allocation of two spring wild turkey licenses.

2) _____ In addition to the allocation provided by North Dakota Century Code section 20.1-05.1-01.3, the director shall issue two additional spring wild turkey licenses and permits to hunt wild turkeys to individuals residing in North Dakota who are selected by the outdoor adventure foundation. All requirements contained within North Dakota Century Code section 20.1-05.1-01.3 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 30-02-05-01 apply to this additional allocation of two spring wild turkey licenses.

History: Effective _____

General Authority: NDCC 20.1-05.1-01

Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-05.1-01; 201.-04-07.1

30-02-05-03. Accounting statement.

Any organization which receives any license in accordance with North Dakota Century Code sections 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, and 20.1-05.1-02 shall provide the director a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing or auction completed on a standardized form provided by the Department. At a minimum, this statement will include information regarding raffle or auction expenses, gross and net raffle or auction

income, number of raffle tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle or auction proceeds were used to promote the raffle or auction.

History: Effective _____

General Authority: 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, 20.1-05.1-02

Law Implemented: 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, 20.1-05.1-02

30-02-05-04. Performance report.

Any organization which receives any license in accordance with North Dakota Century Code sections 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, and 20.1-05.1-02 shall provide the director by the end of each calendar year an annual performance report that identifies all projects funded with raffle or auction proceeds and that states the balance of unspent funds.

History: Effective _____

General Authority: 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, 20.1-05.1-02

Law Implemented: 20.1-04-07.1, 20.1-05.1-01, 20.1-05.1-02

CHAPTER 30-02-06 MOOSE LICENSE RAFFLE

Section

~~30-02-06-01~~ — Procedures and
Conditions ~~30-02-06-02~~

~~Accounting~~

Statement

~~30-02-06-03~~ — Financial Report

~~30-02-06-01. Procedures and conditions.~~

~~Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center and the rocky mountain elk foundation shall submit to the director an overall plan of raffle procedures and program conditions for the director's approval. A detailed copy of guidelines for volunteers who are assisting in the sales of raffle tickets must also be submitted. Upon the director's approval, the North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center and the rocky mountain elk foundation must provide a copy of these guidelines to all volunteers before the volunteers are issued tickets for sale to the public. The raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.~~

~~History: Effective May 1, 1994; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

~~30-02-06-02. Accounting statement.~~

~~The North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center and the rocky mountain elk foundation shall provide the director with a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing. This statement must include information regarding raffle expenses, gross and net raffle income, number of tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle proceeds were used to promote the raffle.~~

~~History: Effective May 1, 1994; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

~~30-02-06-03.~~ **~~Financial report.~~**

~~The North American wildlife enforcement memorial museum and educational center and the rocky mountain elk foundation shall provide the director with an annual financial report to show documentation of how all raffle proceeds were used and the balance of unspent funds.~~

~~History: Effective May 1, 1994; amended effective April 1, 2006.~~

~~General Authority: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

~~Law Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.2~~

CHAPTER 30-02-07 MULE DEER LICENSE RAFFLE

Section

~~30-02-07-01 — Procedures and
Conditions 30-02-07-02~~

~~Accounting~~

Statement

~~30-02-07-03 — Financial Report~~

~~30-02-07-01. Procedures and conditions.~~

~~Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, the mule deer foundation shall submit to the director an overall plan of raffle procedures and program conditions for the director's approval. A detailed copy of guidelines for volunteers who are assisting in the sales of raffle tickets must also be submitted. Upon the director's approval, the mule deer foundation must provide a copy of these guidelines to all volunteers before the volunteers are issued tickets for sale to the public. The raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.~~

~~History: Effective April 1,~~

~~2006. General Authority:~~

~~NDCC 20.1-08-04.8 Law~~

~~Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-
04.8~~

~~30-02-07-02. Accounting statement.~~

~~The mule deer foundation will provide the director with a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing. This statement will include information regarding raffle expenses, gross and net raffle income, number of tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle proceeds were used to promote the raffle.~~

~~History: Effective April 1,~~

~~2006. General Authority:~~

~~NDCC 20.1-08-04.8 Law~~

~~Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-
04.8~~

~~30-02-07-03. Financial report.~~

~~The mule deer foundation will provide the director with an annual financial report for all projects funded with raffle proceeds and the balance of unspent funds.~~

~~History: Effective April 1,~~

~~2006. General Authority:~~

~~NDCC 20.1-08-04.8 Law~~

~~Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-
04.8~~

CHAPTER 30-02-08
ANTELOPE LICENSE RAFFLE

Section

~~30-02-08-01 Procedures and Conditions~~

~~30-02-08-02 Accounting Statement~~

~~30-02-08-03 Financial Report~~

~~30-02-08-01. Procedures and conditions.~~

~~Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, the North Dakota hunter educators' association shall submit to the director an overall plan of raffle procedures and program conditions for the director's approval. A detailed copy of guidelines for volunteers who are assisting in the sales of raffle tickets must also be submitted. Upon the director's approval, the North Dakota hunter educators' association must provide a copy of these guidelines to all volunteers before the volunteers are issued tickets for sale to the public. The raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.~~

~~**History:** Effective April 1, 2008.~~

~~**General Authority:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

~~**Law Implemented:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

~~30-02-08-02. Accounting statement.~~

~~The North Dakota hunter educators' association will provide the director with a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing. This statement will include information regarding raffle expenses, gross and net raffle income, number of tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle proceeds were used to promote the raffle.~~

~~**History:** Effective April 1, 2008.~~

~~**General Authority:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

~~**Law Implemented:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

~~30-02-08-03.~~
~~Financial report.~~

~~The North Dakota hunter educators' association will provide the director with an annual financial report for all projects funded with raffle proceeds and the balance of unspent funds.~~

~~**History:** Effective April 1, 2008.~~

~~**General Authority:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

~~**Law Implemented:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.12~~

CHAPTER 30-02-09 ELK LICENSE RAFFLE

Section

~~30-02-09-01 Procedures and Conditions~~

~~30-02-09-02 Accounting Statement~~

~~30-02-09-03 Financial Report~~

~~30-02-09-01. Procedures and conditions.~~

~~Before printing or distributing any raffle tickets, Annie's house at Bottineau winter park shall submit to the director an overall plan of raffle procedures and program conditions for the director's approval. A detailed copy of guidelines for volunteers who are assisting in the sales of raffle tickets must also be submitted. Upon the director's approval, Annie's house at Bottineau winter park must provide a copy of these guidelines to all volunteers before the volunteers are issued tickets for sale to the public. The raffle must be organized and conducted in accordance with North Dakota Century Code chapter 53-06.1 and North Dakota Administrative Code article 99-01.3.~~

~~**History:** Effective January 1,
2016. **General Authority:** NDCC
20.1-08-04.14 **Law**
Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-
04.14~~

~~30-02-09-02. Accounting statement.~~

~~Annie's house at Bottineau winter park will provide the director with a detailed accounting statement within thirty days after the completion of the raffle drawing. This statement will include information regarding raffle expenses, gross and net raffle income, number of tickets sold and unsold, as well as documented proof that no more than ten percent of the gross raffle proceeds were used to promote the raffle.~~

~~**History:** Effective January 1,
2016. **General Authority:** NDCC
20.1-08-04.14 **Law**
Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-
04.14~~

~~30-02-09-03. Financial report.~~

~~Annie's house at Bottineau winter park will provide the director with a financial report for all projects funded with raffle proceeds and the balance of unspent funds.~~

~~**History:** Effective January 1, 2016. **General Authority:** NDCC 20.1-08-04.14 **Law**
Implemented: NDCC 20.1-08-04.14~~